
 

TRADITION 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT NOS. 1 - 11 
PORT ST. LUCIE 

 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 
JUNE 4, 2025 

11:00 A.M. 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.traditioncdd1.org 
www.traditioncdd2.org 
www.traditioncdd3.org 
www.traditioncdd4.org 
www.traditioncdd5.org 
www.traditioncdd6.org 
www.traditioncdd7.org 
www.traditioncdd8.org 
www.traditioncdd9.org 
www.traditioncdd10.org 
www.traditioncdd11.org 

 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimil 

http://www.traditioncdd1.org/
http://www.traditioncdd2.org/
http://www.traditioncdd3.org/
http://www.traditioncdd4.org/
http://www.traditioncdd5.org/
http://www.traditioncdd6.org/
http://www.traditioncdd7.org/
http://www.traditioncdd8.org/
http://www.traditioncdd9.org/
http://www.traditioncdd10.org/
http://www.traditioncdd11.org/


AGENDA 
TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO.’S 1-11 

Tradition Town Hall  
10799 SW Civic Lane 

Port St. Lucie, FL  34987 
OR 

Join Zoom Meeting: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3341025012?omn=86225592684  

Meeting ID: 334 102 5012 
Dial-In: 1 929 436 2866 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
June 4, 2025 
11:00 a.m. 

 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………….Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions 

E. Comments from the Public Not on the Agenda  

F. Consent Items 

1. Approval of April 2, 2025, Regular Board Meeting Minutes……………..…….………….....Page 3 

2. Approve and Ratify Amendment #1 to Statement of Work #TR20241031…………………...Page7 

3. Approve and Ratify Services Contract with Premier Site Work; Bridge Repairs…………......Page 9 

4. Approval of WA #19-143-190; Lotis at Tradition – SWM……………………………………Page 16 

5. Approval of WA #19-143-191; Westcliffe Lane Extension – SWM…………………………..Page 19 

6. Approval of WA #19-143-192; Sundance Vista Parkway – Phase 1 -SWM…………………..Page 22 

G. Old Business 

1. Irrigation Franchise Agreement  

H. New Business 

1. Report from the Lake Banks Committee 

2. Consider Resolution No. 2025-11; Adopting Proposed Budget FY: 25/26 and Setting a Public 
Hearing (Under Separate Cover)…………………………………………………………….....Page 25 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2025-13; Authorizing Certain Actions in Connection with the  
Implementation of the District’s Capital Improvement Plan – District Nos. 1-11……………..Page 32 

4. Consider Approving Tradition Trail Easement and Berm Agreement with the Lakes at  
Tradition HOA………………………………………………………………………………….Page 55 

I. Administrative Matters 

1. Manager’s Report 

2. Attorney’s Report 

3. Engineer’s Report 

4. Financial Report (Under Separate Cover)………………………..…………………………….Page 75 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3341025012?omn=86225592684


5. Founder’s Report 

J. Board Member Discussion Requests and Comments 

K. Adjourn  



TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NOS. 1-11 
FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 MEETING SCHEDULE 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Tradition Community Development District Nos. 1-11 
(“Districts”) will conduct Regular Board Meetings of the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) for the 
purpose of conducting the business of the Districts that may properly come before the Board. The 
following meetings will be held at 11:00 a.m. at Tradition Town Hall located at 10799 SW Civic 
Lane, Port St. Lucie, Florida 34987 on the following dates: 

*October 2, 2024*
November 6, 2024
December 4, 2024
*January 8, 2025*
February 5, 2025

March 5, 2025 
*April 2, 2025*

May 7, 2025
June 4, 2025

*July 2, 2025*
August 6, 2025

September 3, 2025 

*Irrigation Rate Committee Meeting - 9:00 a.m.
Southern Grove CDD Meeting - 10:30 a.m.

Tradition CDD Meeting - 11:00 a.m. 

*An Irrigation Committee Meeting will take place at 9:00 a.m. at Tradition Town Hall located at
10799 SW Civic Lane, Port St. Lucie, Florida 34987 on the above dates, as indicated.*

The meetings are open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of 
Florida law for community development districts.  Meetings may be continued to a date, time and 
place to be specified on the record.  A copy of the agenda for the meetings may be obtained from 
the Districts’ websites or at the offices of the District Manager, Special District Services, Inc., 
10807 SW Tradition Square, Port St. Lucie, Florida. 

There may be occasions when one or more Supervisors will participate by telephone; therefore, a 
speaker telephone may be present at the meeting location so that one or more Supervisors may 
attend the meeting and be fully informed of the discussions taking place.  

Any person requiring special accommodations at these meetings because of a disability or physical 
impairment should contact the District Office at 772-345-5119 and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922 
at least five calendar days prior to the meeting.  If you are hearing or speech impaired, please 

1



contact the Florida Relay Service at 1-800-955-8770, who can aid you in contacting the District 
Office. 
 
Each person who decides to appeal any action taken at a meeting is advised that they will need a 
record of the proceedings and that accordingly, the person may need to ensure that a verbatim 
record of the proceedings is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal 
is to be based. 
 
Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice. 
 
 
TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NOS. 1-11 
 
www.traditioncdd1.org 
 
PUBLISH:  ST. LUCIE NEWS TRIBUNE    09/24/24 
 

2



TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NOS. 1-11 
Tradition Town Hall 
10799 SW Civic Lane 

Port St. Lucie, Florida 34987 
OR 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3341025012?omn=88544459142   
Meeting ID: 334 102 5012 

Dial-In: 1 929 436 2866 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

April 2, 2025 
11:00 a.m. 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Regular Board Meeting of the Tradition Community Development District No.’s 1-11 April 2, 
2025, was called to order at 11:00 a.m. in the Tradition Town Hall located at 10799 SW Civic Lane, 
Port St. Lucie, Florida 34987. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that showed notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in the St. Lucie News Tribune on March 26th, 2025, as legally required. 
 
C.      ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum, and it was in 
order to proceed with the meeting: 
 
CDD #’s 1,2,7,8,9,10&11   
Chairman Eric Sexauer  Present 
Vice Chairman   William Pittsley Present 
Supervisor Tara Toto Present 
Supervisor Karl Albertson Present (via Zoom) 
Supervisor Jonas Read Present 

 
CDD # 3    
Supervisor Joe Piatcheck Present (via Zoom) 
Chairman Isaiah Steinberg Present 
Supervisor Stan Briggs Present  
Vice Chair Rosario “Roy” Perconte Present 
Supervisor Suzanne Killeen Present 

 
CDD # 4   
Chairman Gail Cost Present 
Vice Chairman Rich Giglia Present 
Supervisor Rob Siedlecki Absent 
Supervisor Lauren Leandre  Present 
Supervisor Drew Wesley  Present 

 

3

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3341025012?omn=88544459142


CDD # 5   
Supervisor Cathy Powers Present 
Chairperson  Chris King Present 
Supervisor Dave Lasher Present 
Supervisor Rick Dixon Present (via Zoom) 
Vice Chairman Joe Pinto Present 

 
CDD # 6   
Chairman Jerry Krbec Present 
Vice Chairman Keith Bulkin Present 
Supervisor George Russell Absent 
Supervisor John Slicher  Present 
Supervisor Peter Webb Present 

 
Staff members in attendance were: 
 
District Manager Frank Sakuma Special District Services, Inc. 
District Manager Stephanie Brown Special District Services, Inc. 
Assistant District Manager Jessica Wargo Special District Services, Inc. 
District Manager Andrew Karmeris Special District Services, Inc. 
District Counsel Ruth Holmes Torcivia, Donlon, Goddeau & 

Rubin, P.A. 
District Engineer Gabriel Gomez Culpepper and Terpening 

 
Also present: Dan Harrell & Mary Milmore 

(See attached sign-in sheet) 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO AGENDA 

There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E.  COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC NOT ON THE AGENDA 
There were no comments from the public. 

F. CONSENT ITEMS 
 

1. Approval of March 5, 2025, Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
 
Staff pulled the March 5, 2025 Regular Board Meeting minutes from the Consent Items for discussion. 
 
A motion was made by CDD No. 1 Mr. Sexauer, seconded by Mr. Read approving the March 5, 2025, 
Regular Board Meeting minutes amended to reflect the addition of Supervisor Peter Webb’s name for 
purposes of quorum. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
G. OLD BUSINESS 
 

1. Franchise Agreement 
 
There was nothing to report at this time. 

4



 
 
 
H. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Summary of Matters Related to Bond Resolution No. 2025-09 
 
Mr. Sakuma reviewed the Summary of Matters related to Bond Resolution No. 2025-09. 

 
2. Resolution No. 2025-09 to be Adopted by Tradition CDD Nos. 7,8,9,10 and 11; 

Approving the Form of a Third Supplemental Assessment Methodology Report in 
Connection with the Tradition CDD No. 9 Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2025 
(Community Infrastructure) 

 
Resolution No. 2025-09 was presented entitled: 

A JOINT RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF TRADITION COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 7, TRADITION 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 8, 
TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT NO. 9, TRADITION COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 10 AND TRADITION 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 11 
APPROVING THE FORM OF A THIRD 
SUPPLEMENTAL ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY 
REPORT IN CONNECTION WITH THE TRADITION 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 9 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS, SERIES 2025 
(COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE); CONFIRMING 
THE DESIGNATION OF THE 2025 ASSESSMENT 
AREA DESCRIBED IN SUCH REPORT; 
CONFIRMING THE LEVY OF A PORTION OF THE 
COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 
IN THE 2025 ASSESSMENT AREA; INDICATING 
THE INTENT TO LEVY AND COLLECT SUCH 
COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 
IN CONNECTION WITH THE 2025 BONDS; 
PROVIDING WHEN THE MATTERS ADDRESSED 
HEREIN BECOME EFFECTIVE; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
A motion was made by Mr. Sexauer, seconded by Mr. Read adopting Resolution No. 2025-0,9 as 
presented. The motion passed unanimously. 
   
I.     ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 

1. Manager’s Report 
 
Mr. Sakuma provided a signage update and reminded the Board Members to file Form 1 no later than 
July 1, 2025.  

5



 
2. Attorney’s Report 

 
There was no Attorney’s Report at this time. 
 

3. Engineer’s Report 
 
There was no Engineer’s Report at this time. 
 

4. Financial Report 
 
Mr. Sakuma advised that the financial report was provided in the Board package, and Mr. Karmeris 
was present to answer any questions. Mr. Karmeris indicated that the Irrigation A/R Summary was on 
Page 34 of the Board package and expressed that Ms. Wargo had done an excellent job of getting the 
accounts current. 
 

5. Founder’s Report  
 
Mr. Sexauer stated that the Heart Sculpture was still in progress, and they would be working on dates 
for the grand opening. He also stated that the Stars and Stripes Park landscaping was almost completed 
and the Regional Park was still in progress. Mr. Sexauer also advised that the line-of-sight landscaping 
issue would begin to be addressed.  
 
J. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Ms. Leandre inquired who was responsible for events/rentals of Tradition Townhall. Mr. Sexauer 
responded that the Tradition Townhall was owned by the Master Association and anyone could make 
a request to utilize it, but there was a process. 
 
Dr. Powers asked if a date had been set for the Outreach Meeting. Mr. Sexauer responded that the 
Outreach Meeting would be held on May 21, 2025, from 11 a.m. until 2 p.m. 
 
Ms. King asked what obligations the alligator trapper had to the CDD. Mr. Sakuma responded that the 
alligator trapper was not contracted by the CDD. Mr. Sakuma also explained that the trapper did not 
patrol areas but relied on phone calls from residents to alert when there was an issue. 
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 
  
There being no further business to come before the Board, Mr. Sexauer made a motion, seconded by 
Mr. Read adjourning the meeting at 11:19 a.m. There were no objections. 
 
 
_________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice-Chair 
 
_________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Print Name     Print Name  

6



7



Wayne Arden

General Counsel
April 8, 2025

8



9



Services Contract 

This Contract entered into this __________ day of ___________________, 2025, 
is between Premier Site Work LLC (“Independent Contractor”), and Tradition Community 
Development District No. 1 (“District”). 

I. Duties of Independent Contractor:  The Independent Contractor shall furnish the
equipment and perform the labor necessary for bridge and sidewalk repairs, as more fully
described in attached Exhibit A, in the Tradition Community Development District Nos.
1-11 in Port St. Lucie.

II. Term; Entire Agreement:  This Contract will be for a period of 6 months,
commencing on the date entered into and ending on September 30, 2025, unless terminated
in writing by either party in accordance with the termination provisions of Section V
hereof.  This Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to
its subject matter and supersedes all prior oral or written agreements between the parties.
Changes, including changes in price and cost, are ineffective unless properly authorized,
signed, and delivered in writing by both parties as an addendum to this Contract.

III. Compensation:  District agrees to pay Independent Contractor as compensation for
the performance of the duties of the Independent Contractor under this Contract.  The
compensation shall be in accordance with the terms described in Exhibit A.  Invoices for
services will be payable within the time limits and other requirements set forth in the
Florida Local Government Prompt Payment Act, Part VII of chapter 218, Florida Statutes.

IV. Basic Understanding of the Parties:  The parties acknowledge and agree that the
District is a local government with a specialized single purpose of providing infrastructure.
All of the work of the District is subject to public records, government-in-the-sunshine and
related requirements.  The parties understand that because the District is a local government
certain requirements and limitations apply that would not apply to a private entity.  The
services provided by the Independent Contractor under this Contract are rendered to the
District as an independent contractor and nothing in this Contract shall create an
employer/employee, partnership, joint venture, or principal/agent relationship between the
parties. Independent Contractor shall not be deemed  to be an agent of the District within
the meaning or scope of Florida Statute §768.28(9) and shall not be deemed exempt from
responsibility or liability for claims or damages resulting from the Independent
Contractor’s actions or failure to act under the terms and provisions of this Contract.

V. Termination:  This Contract may be terminated with or without cause at any time
by either party upon thirty (30) days prior written notice, delivered by first class U.S. mail
or electronic mail transmission to the address of the other party as set forth in the signature
blocks below, in which event all unaccrued rights, duties and obligations of the parties
hereto shall terminate forthwith.

VI. Other Related Provisions and Requirements:

29th                            April

10



 2 

(a) Work Standard.  Work shall be performed professionally in accordance with 
generally accepted standards of the trade or business.  

 
(b) Insurance.  Independent Contractor shall provide certificate(s) of the following 

contractually required insurance coverages and policies to be maintained in full 
force and effect by the Independent Contractor in the coverage amounts set 
forth above, throughout the term of this Contract, and including any extensions 
thereof.  All such policies and certificates shall also contain a waiver of 
subrogation in favor of the District and the District Manager and shall also name 
the District and the District Manager, including affiliates, officers, employees, 
agents and volunteers, as additional insureds under such insurance policies on 
a primary and non-contributory coverage basis, under the following required 
coverages: (1) commercial general liability insurance with minimum coverage 
limits applicable to bodily injury (and property damage) in the coverage limit 
of at least $1,000,000 per person and $2,000,000 per occurrence together with 
an excess umbrella liability policy in the coverage limits of at least $5,000,000, 
excess over required underlying coverages. Such insurance policies shall also 
provide an endorsement deleting any policy coverage exclusion relating to the 
“insured’s work” or similar exclusion purporting to exclude bodily injury or 
property damage arising out of the work or services to be performed by 
Independent Contractor hereunder; (2) auto liability insurance coverage 
(minimum coverage amount of $1,000,000 Any Auto; Symbol 1), together with 
an excess umbrella liability policy in the coverage limit of at least $5,000,000, 
excess over required underlying coverage; (3) workers compensation and 
employers’ liability insurance coverage for all employees and subcontractors of 
the Independent Contractor as follows: (i) coverage A workers compensation 
statutory benefits; (ii) Employers’ Liability (Coverage B) - $500,000 coverage 
limit for each accident. 
 

(c) Reimbursement for Negligent Property Damage.  In addition to the insurance 
requirements of this Agreement, Independent Contractor shall reimburse the 
District for damages by Independent Contractor to any and all personal and/or 
real property due to negligence of the Independent Contractor. 

 
(d) Time of the Essence.  The Independent Contractor recognizes that time is of the 

essence due to the specialized single purpose of the District. 
 

(e) Disputes; Interpretation; Opportunity to Consult Counsel; Venue.  Any 
controversies arising under this Contract that cannot be resolved by the parties 
shall be subject either to mediation and if mediation fails then legal action may 
be instituted and any prevailing party shall be entitled to be reimbursed for all 
court costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees incident to such legal action.  All 
interpretations of this Contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Florida.  Each party has had ample opportunity to seek the advice of legal 
counsel prior to entering this Contract, which shall not be construed against the 
party responsible for drafting the instrument.  In the event it is necessary for 

11



 3 

either party to initiate legal action regarding this Contract, venue shall be in the 
Nineteenth Judicial Circuit, in and for St. Lucie County, Florida, for claims 
under state law, and in the Southern District of Florida for claims justiciable in 
federal court. 

 
(f) Alternate Services if Breach.  If the Independent Contractor ceases work or 

otherwise breaches this Contract the District has the authority without penalty 
direct or indirect to contract for the relevant services to be performed by other 
independent contractors given the nature and specialized single purpose of the 
District that infrastructure be constructed, acquired and maintained timely at 
sustained levels of quality over the long term. 

 
(g) Indemnification.  In addition to the insurance requirements of subsection (b) 

above, Independent Contractor also agrees forever to indemnify, defend and 
hold harmless the District, Special District Services, Inc., and their respective 
officers, employees, and agents of and from all losses, liabilities, damages, 
claims, actions, legal proceedings, settlements, judgments, recoveries, costs, 
and expenses because of or resulting from loss of, or damage to, property, or 
injury to or deaths of persons in any way arising out of or in connection with 
the performance of this Contract and attributable to the negligence or other 
wrongful conduct of the Independent Contractor or its employees, agents, or 
subcontractors, including but not limited to any loss or action resulting from the 
failure of the Independent Contractor to comply with the its obligations under 
this Contract. The Independent Contractor shall also cause the above 
indemnification obligations to be confirmed, by insurance policy endorsement, 
as liabilities and obligations of the Independent Contractor which are covered 
as insured obligations under the insurance coverage requirements set forth in 
subsection (b) above. 

 

(h) Severability.  The terms of this Contract shall be severable such that, if any term 
is determined to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, such holding shall not 
affect the viability of any of the other provisions of the Contract, unless the 
severing of such item would defeat the purpose of this Contract. 

 

(i) Waiver.  No delay or failure on the part of any party in exercising any right, 
power, or privilege under this Contract shall impair any such right, power, or 
privilege or be construed as a waiver or acquiescence; nor shall any single or 
partial exercise of any right, power, or privilege preclude any other or further 
exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power, or privilege.  No 
waiver shall be valid against any party unless made in writing and signed by the 
party against whom enforcement of the waiver is sought and then only to the 
extent expressly specified in such writing. 

 
(j) Sovereign Immunity.  Notwithstanding any other term, condition or provision 

of this Contract to the contrary, the District, and also including the District 
Manager, and its employees, who are agreed to be acting as statutory agents of 

12



 4 

the District, pursuant to Florida Statute §768.28(9) and who intends to avail 
themselves, whether individually or collectively, of the benefits of Section 
768.28, Florida Statutes, and of other statutes and common law governing 
sovereign immunity.  In no event will the District's liability exceed the 
monetary limits set forth in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes.  Nothing in this 
Contract (1) is intended to inure to the benefit of any third party, other than, and 
with the specific exception of the District Manager, and its employees, all of 
whom are confirmed to be statutory agents of the District and who are 
specifically and affirmatively intended as beneficiaries of this Agreement and 
of the sovereign immunity provisions of Florida Statute Section 768.28(9), for 
the purpose of allowing any claim that would otherwise be barred under the 
doctrine of sovereign immunity or by operation of law or (2) shall be construed 
as consent by an agency or political subdivision of the State of Florida, or by 
its District Manager, to be sued by third parties in any manner arising out of 
any contract, and including any claim or cause of action for damages to the 
extent that such matters are included within the sovereign immunity provisions 
of §768.28, Florida Statutes and, specifically including, but not limited to 
§768.28(9), Florida Statutes. 

 
(k) Execution; Successors and Assigns.  This Contract may be executed in 

counterparts (including by facsimile or other electronic imaging), any one of 
which shall be deemed an original and all of which collectively shall be deemed 
a single instrument. This Contract shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit 
of the parties and their respective officers, directors, agents, employees, 
administrators, trustees, executors, receivers, successors, assignees and legal 
representatives, whether or not a signatory to this Contract. 

 
(l) Verification of Employment Status.  The Independent Contractor shall bear full 

responsibility for verifying the employment status, under the Immigration 
Reform and Control Act of 1986, of all persons the Independent Contractor 
employs in the performance of this Contract.  In furtherance of this requirement, 
the Independent Contractor shall (1) register with and use the United States 
Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify the employment 
eligibility of all new employees hired by the Independent Contractor during the 
term of this Contract, and (2) if the Independent Contractor enters into an 
agreement with a subcontractor during the term of this Contract, (i) obtain from 
the subcontractor an affidavit stating that the subcontractor does no employ, 
contract with, or subcontract with an “unauthorized alien,” as that term is 
defined in Section 448.095(1)(k), Florida Statutes, and (ii) maintain a copy of 
such affidavit for the duration of this Contract. 

 

(m) Public Records.  The Independent Contractor shall allow public access to all 
documents, papers, letters, or other material subject to the provisions of 
Florida’s Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and made or 
received by the Independent Contractor in conjunction with this Contract.  The 

13



14



EXHIBIT A

15



16



 

 

Tradition Community Development District 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM 

Board Meeting Date: June 4, 2025 
 

 
Subject:   TR - Lotis at Tradition - SWM 
 Work Authorization No.  WA-19-143-190 
 C&T Project No. 19-143.TR7.011.0325.W 
  
Background: 

On March 31, 2025, the Tradition CDD Engineer received a Work Authorization 
application for the “Lotis at Tradition” Project, a 31.59-acre Multifamily residential 
development.  The subject property can be identified as parcel ID 4305-701-
0002-000-4.  
 

Recommended Action: 
Approve proposed project connecting to the Tradition Master Stormwater System 
under the following conditions: 

1. Responding to the outstanding Request for Additional Information to the 
CDD Engineer’s satisfaction. 

 
Location:  Tradition Community Development District CDD.7  

 
Within Tradition Irrigation Service Area? Yes  

 
Fiscal Information:   This project is not expected to impact the CDD Stormwater System 

operational budget. 
 
Grant Related?  No  
Additional Comments: None 
 
Board Action: 
Moved by: Seconded by:  Action Taken: 
 
 
 
 
Item Prepared by: Stefan K. Matthes, PE         April 9, 2025                 

17



SW
F

ernw
ood
Ave

SW Ellsworth

Blvd

SW Marigold
Ave

SW Tradition Pkwy

S
W

S
tra

tto

n Dr

SW
D

ar
da

ne
lle D
r

SW

ArtesiaDr

S
W

 R
iv

er
la

nd
B

lv
d

SW Discovery Way

Ave n
tin

o

SW
Fern

la
ke

Dr

S
W

Kin
gslake

C
ir

SW Apple B lo
ss

om
Trl

SW
AventinoDrSW Marrita

Aly

S

W

R
iver

C
ro

s

sing
P

l

S
W

 L
ak

e
F

er
n 

C
ir

S
W

O
r a na Dr

S
W

Fo
rli

W
ay

S

W Elenore

Dr

S
W

N
e

w
berry

A
v

e

S
W

 C
loister

D
r S

W
 S

antini R
dS
W

Board walk

Blvd
S

W
B

ro
o

ksi d

e
Falls Way

SW MapleTree Ln

SW Golden
Falls Ln

SW
Mountain

Ash Cir

SW
E

ls
in

or
e

Dr

SW

Roma

Cir

SWBassettCt

SW
B

en
ni

ngton
Cir

SW
Fo

rtezzaWay

SW Tradition
Lakes Blvd

SW
Pietra

Way

S
W

M
oon

R
iver

W
ay

SW
W

in
d

ing
L

a ke s

C
ir

S

W Winding
Rid ge Blvd

S
W

Indian

Lilac
T

rl

SW River

Rock R d

SW

H
artw

ick
D

r

SW
Esu

le

W
ay

SW Lunata
W

ay

S
W

S
h

in
n

e
co

ck D
r

S

W
Lake Park Dr

SW
Aspe

n

Ln

SW Arabella Dr

S
W

Barelli
Ct SW

Com
m

unityBlvd

SW Willow
Ln

SW
A

rc
o

W
a

y

SW Enzi
Way

SW

H
az

el
D

r

S
W

P
hineas
Ln

S
W

 A
rezzo

R
d

SW

Coral

Tr

ee
Cir

Bre
ve

SW Nettuno

Way

SW

Liber t
as

W
ay

SW
R

ow

ena
St

SW AstorCreek Pkwy

SW Roma
Way

S
W

D
avan

ti D
r

SW

Verano

Pkwy

S
W

Oc
eanus

Blvd

SW Macelli

Way

SW Pe p oli
W

ay

SW
W

estcliffe Ln

Tradition
Pkwy

Glad
es

Cut
Off

Rd

R
ange Line R

d

State of Florida, Esri, HERE, Garmin, iPC

EXHIBIT 1
TR - LOTIS AT

TRADITION
SITE LOCATION MAP

Work Authorization #:
19-143.
Project #:
19-143.TR7.011.0325.W
Scale: 1" = 2,048'
Date: 4/9/2025

Legend
Subject Property

Other Parcels

0 1,000 2,000
Feet

´
P

:\P
ro

j-2
01

9\
19

-0
85

 T
ra

di
tio

n 
C

D
D

\G
IS

\1
9-

08
5 

B
as

e 
G

IS
\1

9-
08

5 
B

as
e.

ap
rx

TR - Lotis at Tradition
WA#: 19-143.

Project #:19-143.TR7.011.0325.W

18

ggomez
Text Box
190

ggomez
Text Box
190



19



 

 

Tradition Community Development District 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM 

Board Meeting Date: June 4, 2025 
 

 
Subject:   TR - Westcliffe Lane Extension- SWM 
 Work Authorization No.  WA-19-143-191 
 C&T Project No. 19-143.TR7.012.0325.W 
  
Background: 

On April 7, 2025, the Tradition CDD Engineer received a Work Authorization 
application for the Westcliffe Lane Extension project.  The 7.6-acre proposed 
project include the extension of Westcliffe Lane from the existing stub at the 
entrance of Esplanade at Tradition to the NSA ROW along with the construction 
of associated drainage infrastructure. 
 

Recommended Action: 
Approve proposed project connecting to the Tradition Master Stormwater System 
under the following conditions: 

1. Responding to the outstanding Request for Additional Information to the 
CDD Engineer’s satisfaction. 

 
Location:  Tradition Community Development District CDD.7  

 
Within Tradition Irrigation Service Area? Yes  

 
Fiscal Information:   This project is not expected to impact the CDD Stormwater System 

operational budget. 
 
Grant Related?  No  
Additional Comments: None 
 
Board Action: 
Moved by: Seconded by:  Action Taken: 
 
 
 
 
Item Prepared by: Stefan K. Matthes, PE         April 18, 2025                 

20



21

ggomez
Text Box
143-191

ggomez
Text Box
143-191



22



 

 

Tradition Community Development District 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM 

Board Meeting Date: June 4, 2025 
 

 
Subject:   TR - Sundance Vista Parkway - Phase 1 - SWM 
 Work Authorization No.  WA-19-143-192 
 C&T Project No. 19-143.TR7.013.0425.W  
  
Background: 

On April 7, 2025, the Tradition CDD Engineer received a Work Authorization 
application for the “Sundance Vista Parkway - Phase 1” roadway project.  The 
3.9-acre proposed project consists of the initial construction of a portion of 
Sundance Vista Parkway, beginning at the proposed Western Grove 5D 
driveway to Crosstown Parkway, and includes associated sidewalks and 
drainage systems. 
 

Recommended Action: 
Approve proposed project connecting to the Tradition Master Stormwater System 
under the following conditions: 

1. Responding to the outstanding Request for Additional Information to the 
CDD Engineer’s satisfaction. 

 
Location:  Tradition Community Development District CDD.7  

 
Within Tradition Irrigation Service Area? Yes 

 
Fiscal Information:   This project is not expected to impact the CDD Stormwater System 

operational budget. 
 
Grant Related?  No  
Additional Comments: None 
 
Board Action: 
Moved by: Seconded by:  Action Taken: 
 
 
 
 
Item Prepared by: Stefan K. Matthes, PE         April 18, 2025                 

23



24

ggomez
Text Box
143-192

ggomez
Text Box
143-192



25



RESOLUTION 2025-11 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT NO.’S 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10 & 11 APPROVING 
THE DISTRICT'S PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2025/2026; SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING 
THEREON PURSUANT TO FLORIDA LAW; DIRECTING 
STAFF TO PROVIDE A COPY OF THE PROPOSED 
BUDGET TO THE LOCAL GENERAL PURPOSE 
GOVERNMENT AND PROVIDING FOR NOTICE OF SAID 
HEARING PUSUANT TO LAW. 

 
WHEREAS, the District Manager has heretofore prepared and submitted to the Board 

a proposed budget for fiscal year 2025/2026 attached hereto as Exhibit A; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has considered said proposed budget and 
desires to set the required public hearing thereon. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS OF TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NO.1: 

 
 

1. The budget proposed by the District Manager for fiscal year 2025/2026, 
attached hereto as Exhibit A, is hereby approved as the basis for conducting 
a public hearing to adopt said budget. 

 
2. A public hearing on said approved budget is hereby declared and set for the 

following date, hour and place: 
 

Date: August 6th, 2025 

Hour:   11:00A.M. 

Place:   Tradition Town Hall 

 
3. The District Manager shall send a copy of the proposed budget to the City 

of Port St. Lucie at least 60 days prior to the date of the public hearing. 
 

4. The District Manager shall cause notice of the public hearing to be provided 
by publication in a newspaper of general circulation in St. Lucie County 
once a week for two consecutive weeks with the first publication not less 
than 15 days prior to the date of the public hearing. 

26



 
 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 4th DAY OF JUNE, 2025. 
 
 

TRADITION COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO.’S 1, 2, 
7, 8, 9,10 & 11 

 
 
            
 

Chairman / Vice Chairman 
 
           ______________________________________ 
           Print Name  
        
 

  ATTEST:  
 
 
 

Secretary  
 
 

Print Name (B. Frank Sakuma, Jr.) 
 
 

TRADITION COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 3 

 
 
            
 

Chairman / Vice Chairman 
 
          ______________________________________ 
          Print Name  
        
 

  ATTEST:  
 
 
 

Secretary  
 
 

Print Name (B. Frank Sakuma, Jr.) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 27



TRADITION COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 4 

 
 
            
 

Chairman / Vice Chairman 
 
          ______________________________________ 
          Print Name  
 

  ATTEST:  
 
 
 

Secretary  
 
 

Print Name (B. Frank Sakuma, Jr.) 
 

 
 
TRADITION COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 5 

 
 
            
 

Chairman / Vice Chairman 
 
          ______________________________________    

           Print Name 
 ATTEST:          
 
 
 
 

Secretary  
 
 

Print Name (B. Frank Sakuma, Jr.) 
 

         

28



TRADITION COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 6 

 
 
            
 

Chairman / Vice Chairman 
 
          ______________________________________      

            Print Name 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 

Secretary  
 
 

Print Name (B. Frank Sakuma, Jr.) 
 

         

29



 
EXHIBIT "A" 

30



Fiscal Year: 25-26 
Proposed Budget  

(Under Separate Cover) 
 

 

31



32



RESOLUTION 2025-13 
 

[RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ACTIONS TO IMPLEMENT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN] 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE TRADITION 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 1 AUTHORIZING CERTAIN 
ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 
DISTRICT’S CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN, INCLUDING THE 
CONVEYANCE AND/OR ACQUISITION OF REAL AND PERSONAL 
PROPERTY, EXECUTION OF PLATS, TRANSFER OF PERMITS, EXECUTION 
OF CONTRACTS AND CHANGE ORDERS, PAYMENT OF REQUISITIONS, 
AND OTHER ACTIONS AS DESCRIBED HEREIN; APPROVING THE SCOPE 
AND TERMS OF SUCH AUTHORIZATION; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Tradition Community Development District No. 1 (the “District”) is a local unit of 
special purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to construct, install, operate, 
and/or maintain systems and facilities for certain basic infrastructure, including but not limited to, 
roadways, stormwater management, utilities (water and sewer), offsite improvements, amenity, 
hardscaping/landscaping/irrigation/lighting; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has adopted or intends to adopt an “Engineer’s Report,” which sets forth 
the scope of the District’s capital improvement plan (“CIP”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with the implementation of the CIP as described in the Engineer’s 
Report, the District may, from time to time, (i) obtain, execute and/or accept permits, approvals, right-of-
way agreements and other similar documents from governmental entities for the construction and/or 
operation of CIP improvements, (ii) accept, acquire, convey, dedicate and fund certain interests in real 
and personal property (e.g., roads, utilities, stormwater improvements, and other systems), and, for those 
purposes, may execute plats, deeds, easements, bills of sale, permit transfer documents, agreements, and 
other documents necessary for the conveyance and/or operation of CIP improvements, work product and 
land; (iii) contract for, and/or accept an assignment of contracts for, and/or execute change orders in 
connection with, site work and other contracts for the construction, installation, operation, maintenance, 
repair and/or replacement of CIP improvements; (iv) pay requisitions to fund the cost associated with the 
acquisition and/or construction of CIP improvements; and (v) otherwise take actions necessary to 
implement the CIP ((i) through (v) together, “CIP Documents”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, to facilitate the efficient development of the CIP, the District desires to authorize the 
Chairperson, and other officers in the Chairperson’s absence, to approve and execute any CIP Documents, 
subject to the parameters set forth herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors finds that granting such authority is in the best interests of 

the District so that the development of the CIP may proceed expeditiously, subject to the terms and 
limitations imposed by this Resolution. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 1: 

33



 
1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.  The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this 

reference are incorporated into and form a material part of this Resolution. 
 
2. AUTHORIZATION FOR CIP DOCUMENTS.  The Chairperson of the District’s Board of 

Supervisors is hereby authorized to sign, accept and/or execute CIP Documents as defined above.  Any 
exercise of authority granted hereunder is subject to:  (i) review and approval of the District Engineer and 
District Manager, in consultation with District Counsel, (ii) confirmation from the District Engineer that 
the action is consistent with the CIP as set forth in the Engineer’s Report, and (iii) confirmation from the 
District Engineer and District Manager that such action is reasonably necessary to timely implement the 
CIP.  The District Manager shall make reasonable efforts to bring any CIP Documents back to the District’s 
Board of Supervisors for ratification at the next scheduled Board meeting, but the failure to do so shall 
not invalidate any exercise of authority granted hereunder. 
 

The Vice Chairperson or Secretary of the District’s Board of Supervisors is hereby authorized to 
sign, accept and/or execute any such CIP Documents in the Chairperson’s absence. The Vice Chairperson, 
Secretary, and Assistant Secretaries of the District’s Board of Supervisors are hereby authorized to 
counter-sign such CIP Documents.  District Staff is also authorized to take such actions as are necessary to 
effect the transactions contemplated under any executed CIP Documents.   

 
3. SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this Resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 

provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

4. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect upon its passage and shall remain in 
effect unless rescinded or repealed.  This Resolution shall also apply to ratify all prior approvals and/or 
executions of CIP Documents.    
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of June, 2025.  
 
ATTEST:       TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT NO. 1 
 
 
 
_________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson, Board of 

Supervisors 
 
 
 

34



RESOLUTION 2025-13 
 

[RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ACTIONS TO IMPLEMENT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN] 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE TRADITION 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 AUTHORIZING CERTAIN 
ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 
DISTRICT’S CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN, INCLUDING THE 
CONVEYANCE AND/OR ACQUISITION OF REAL AND PERSONAL 
PROPERTY, EXECUTION OF PLATS, TRANSFER OF PERMITS, EXECUTION 
OF CONTRACTS AND CHANGE ORDERS, PAYMENT OF REQUISITIONS, 
AND OTHER ACTIONS AS DESCRIBED HEREIN; APPROVING THE SCOPE 
AND TERMS OF SUCH AUTHORIZATION; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Tradition Community Development District No. 2 (the “District”) is a local unit of 
special purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to construct, install, operate, 
and/or maintain systems and facilities for certain basic infrastructure, including but not limited to, 
roadways, stormwater management, utilities (water and sewer), offsite improvements, amenity, 
hardscaping/landscaping/irrigation/lighting; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has adopted or intends to adopt an “Engineer’s Report,” which sets forth 
the scope of the District’s capital improvement plan (“CIP”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with the implementation of the CIP as described in the Engineer’s 
Report, the District may, from time to time, (i) obtain, execute and/or accept permits, approvals, right-of-
way agreements and other similar documents from governmental entities for the construction and/or 
operation of CIP improvements, (ii) accept, acquire, convey, dedicate and fund certain interests in real 
and personal property (e.g., roads, utilities, stormwater improvements, and other systems), and, for those 
purposes, may execute plats, deeds, easements, bills of sale, permit transfer documents, agreements, and 
other documents necessary for the conveyance and/or operation of CIP improvements, work product and 
land; (iii) contract for, and/or accept an assignment of contracts for, and/or execute change orders in 
connection with, site work and other contracts for the construction, installation, operation, maintenance, 
repair and/or replacement of CIP improvements; (iv) pay requisitions to fund the cost associated with the 
acquisition and/or construction of CIP improvements; and (v) otherwise take actions necessary to 
implement the CIP ((i) through (v) together, “CIP Documents”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, to facilitate the efficient development of the CIP, the District desires to authorize the 
Chairperson, and other officers in the Chairperson’s absence, to approve and execute any CIP Documents, 
subject to the parameters set forth herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors finds that granting such authority is in the best interests of 

the District so that the development of the CIP may proceed expeditiously, subject to the terms and 
limitations imposed by this Resolution. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 2: 

35



 
1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.  The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this 

reference are incorporated into and form a material part of this Resolution. 
 
2. AUTHORIZATION FOR CIP DOCUMENTS.  The Chairperson of the District’s Board of 

Supervisors is hereby authorized to sign, accept and/or execute CIP Documents as defined above.  Any 
exercise of authority granted hereunder is subject to:  (i) review and approval of the District Engineer and 
District Manager, in consultation with District Counsel, (ii) confirmation from the District Engineer that 
the action is consistent with the CIP as set forth in the Engineer’s Report, and (iii) confirmation from the 
District Engineer and District Manager that such action is reasonably necessary to timely implement the 
CIP.  The District Manager shall make reasonable efforts to bring any CIP Documents back to the District’s 
Board of Supervisors for ratification at the next scheduled Board meeting, but the failure to do so shall 
not invalidate any exercise of authority granted hereunder. 
 

The Vice Chairperson or Secretary of the District’s Board of Supervisors is hereby authorized to 
sign, accept and/or execute any such CIP Documents in the Chairperson’s absence. The Vice Chairperson, 
Secretary, and Assistant Secretaries of the District’s Board of Supervisors are hereby authorized to 
counter-sign such CIP Documents.  District Staff is also authorized to take such actions as are necessary to 
effect the transactions contemplated under any executed CIP Documents.   

 
3. SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this Resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 

provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

4. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect upon its passage and shall remain in 
effect unless rescinded or repealed.  This Resolution shall also apply to ratify all prior approvals and/or 
executions of CIP Documents.    
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of June, 2025.  
 
ATTEST:       TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT NO. 2 
 
 
 
_________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson, Board of 

Supervisors 
 
 
 

36



RESOLUTION 2025-13 
 

[RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ACTIONS TO IMPLEMENT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN] 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE TRADITION 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 3 AUTHORIZING CERTAIN 
ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 
DISTRICT’S CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN, INCLUDING THE 
CONVEYANCE AND/OR ACQUISITION OF REAL AND PERSONAL 
PROPERTY, EXECUTION OF PLATS, TRANSFER OF PERMITS, EXECUTION 
OF CONTRACTS AND CHANGE ORDERS, PAYMENT OF REQUISITIONS, 
AND OTHER ACTIONS AS DESCRIBED HEREIN; APPROVING THE SCOPE 
AND TERMS OF SUCH AUTHORIZATION; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Tradition Community Development District No. 3 (the “District”) is a local unit of 
special purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to construct, install, operate, 
and/or maintain systems and facilities for certain basic infrastructure, including but not limited to, 
roadways, stormwater management, utilities (water and sewer), offsite improvements, amenity, 
hardscaping/landscaping/irrigation/lighting; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has adopted or intends to adopt an “Engineer’s Report,” which sets forth 
the scope of the District’s capital improvement plan (“CIP”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with the implementation of the CIP as described in the Engineer’s 
Report, the District may, from time to time, (i) obtain, execute and/or accept permits, approvals, right-of-
way agreements and other similar documents from governmental entities for the construction and/or 
operation of CIP improvements, (ii) accept, acquire, convey, dedicate and fund certain interests in real 
and personal property (e.g., roads, utilities, stormwater improvements, and other systems), and, for those 
purposes, may execute plats, deeds, easements, bills of sale, permit transfer documents, agreements, and 
other documents necessary for the conveyance and/or operation of CIP improvements, work product and 
land; (iii) contract for, and/or accept an assignment of contracts for, and/or execute change orders in 
connection with, site work and other contracts for the construction, installation, operation, maintenance, 
repair and/or replacement of CIP improvements; (iv) pay requisitions to fund the cost associated with the 
acquisition and/or construction of CIP improvements; and (v) otherwise take actions necessary to 
implement the CIP ((i) through (v) together, “CIP Documents”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, to facilitate the efficient development of the CIP, the District desires to authorize the 
Chairperson, and other officers in the Chairperson’s absence, to approve and execute any CIP Documents, 
subject to the parameters set forth herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors finds that granting such authority is in the best interests of 

the District so that the development of the CIP may proceed expeditiously, subject to the terms and 
limitations imposed by this Resolution. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 3: 

37



 
1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.  The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this 

reference are incorporated into and form a material part of this Resolution. 
 
2. AUTHORIZATION FOR CIP DOCUMENTS.  The Chairperson of the District’s Board of 

Supervisors is hereby authorized to sign, accept and/or execute CIP Documents as defined above.  Any 
exercise of authority granted hereunder is subject to:  (i) review and approval of the District Engineer and 
District Manager, in consultation with District Counsel, (ii) confirmation from the District Engineer that 
the action is consistent with the CIP as set forth in the Engineer’s Report, and (iii) confirmation from the 
District Engineer and District Manager that such action is reasonably necessary to timely implement the 
CIP.  The District Manager shall make reasonable efforts to bring any CIP Documents back to the District’s 
Board of Supervisors for ratification at the next scheduled Board meeting, but the failure to do so shall 
not invalidate any exercise of authority granted hereunder. 
 

The Vice Chairperson or Secretary of the District’s Board of Supervisors is hereby authorized to 
sign, accept and/or execute any such CIP Documents in the Chairperson’s absence. The Vice Chairperson, 
Secretary, and Assistant Secretaries of the District’s Board of Supervisors are hereby authorized to 
counter-sign such CIP Documents.  District Staff is also authorized to take such actions as are necessary to 
effect the transactions contemplated under any executed CIP Documents.   

 
3. SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this Resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 

provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

4. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect upon its passage and shall remain in 
effect unless rescinded or repealed.  This Resolution shall also apply to ratify all prior approvals and/or 
executions of CIP Documents.    
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of June, 2025.  
 
ATTEST:       TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT NO. 3 
 
 
 
_________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson, Board of 

Supervisors 
 
 
 

38



RESOLUTION 2025-13 
 

[RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ACTIONS TO IMPLEMENT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN] 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE TRADITION 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 4 AUTHORIZING CERTAIN 
ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 
DISTRICT’S CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN, INCLUDING THE 
CONVEYANCE AND/OR ACQUISITION OF REAL AND PERSONAL 
PROPERTY, EXECUTION OF PLATS, TRANSFER OF PERMITS, EXECUTION 
OF CONTRACTS AND CHANGE ORDERS, PAYMENT OF REQUISITIONS, 
AND OTHER ACTIONS AS DESCRIBED HEREIN; APPROVING THE SCOPE 
AND TERMS OF SUCH AUTHORIZATION; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Tradition Community Development District No. 4 (the “District”) is a local unit of 
special purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to construct, install, operate, 
and/or maintain systems and facilities for certain basic infrastructure, including but not limited to, 
roadways, stormwater management, utilities (water and sewer), offsite improvements, amenity, 
hardscaping/landscaping/irrigation/lighting; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has adopted or intends to adopt an “Engineer’s Report,” which sets forth 
the scope of the District’s capital improvement plan (“CIP”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with the implementation of the CIP as described in the Engineer’s 
Report, the District may, from time to time, (i) obtain, execute and/or accept permits, approvals, right-of-
way agreements and other similar documents from governmental entities for the construction and/or 
operation of CIP improvements, (ii) accept, acquire, convey, dedicate and fund certain interests in real 
and personal property (e.g., roads, utilities, stormwater improvements, and other systems), and, for those 
purposes, may execute plats, deeds, easements, bills of sale, permit transfer documents, agreements, and 
other documents necessary for the conveyance and/or operation of CIP improvements, work product and 
land; (iii) contract for, and/or accept an assignment of contracts for, and/or execute change orders in 
connection with, site work and other contracts for the construction, installation, operation, maintenance, 
repair and/or replacement of CIP improvements; (iv) pay requisitions to fund the cost associated with the 
acquisition and/or construction of CIP improvements; and (v) otherwise take actions necessary to 
implement the CIP ((i) through (v) together, “CIP Documents”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, to facilitate the efficient development of the CIP, the District desires to authorize the 
Chairperson, and other officers in the Chairperson’s absence, to approve and execute any CIP Documents, 
subject to the parameters set forth herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors finds that granting such authority is in the best interests of 

the District so that the development of the CIP may proceed expeditiously, subject to the terms and 
limitations imposed by this Resolution. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 4: 

39



 
1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.  The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this 

reference are incorporated into and form a material part of this Resolution. 
 
2. AUTHORIZATION FOR CIP DOCUMENTS.  The Chairperson of the District’s Board of 

Supervisors is hereby authorized to sign, accept and/or execute CIP Documents as defined above.  Any 
exercise of authority granted hereunder is subject to:  (i) review and approval of the District Engineer and 
District Manager, in consultation with District Counsel, (ii) confirmation from the District Engineer that 
the action is consistent with the CIP as set forth in the Engineer’s Report, and (iii) confirmation from the 
District Engineer and District Manager that such action is reasonably necessary to timely implement the 
CIP.  The District Manager shall make reasonable efforts to bring any CIP Documents back to the District’s 
Board of Supervisors for ratification at the next scheduled Board meeting, but the failure to do so shall 
not invalidate any exercise of authority granted hereunder. 
 

The Vice Chairperson or Secretary of the District’s Board of Supervisors is hereby authorized to 
sign, accept and/or execute any such CIP Documents in the Chairperson’s absence. The Vice Chairperson, 
Secretary, and Assistant Secretaries of the District’s Board of Supervisors are hereby authorized to 
counter-sign such CIP Documents.  District Staff is also authorized to take such actions as are necessary to 
effect the transactions contemplated under any executed CIP Documents.   

 
3. SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this Resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 

provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

4. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect upon its passage and shall remain in 
effect unless rescinded or repealed.  This Resolution shall also apply to ratify all prior approvals and/or 
executions of CIP Documents.    
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of June, 2025.  
 
ATTEST:       TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT NO. 4 
 
 
 
_________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson, Board of 

Supervisors 
 
 
 

40



RESOLUTION 2025-13 
 

[RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ACTIONS TO IMPLEMENT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN] 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE TRADITION 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 5 AUTHORIZING CERTAIN 
ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 
DISTRICT’S CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN, INCLUDING THE 
CONVEYANCE AND/OR ACQUISITION OF REAL AND PERSONAL 
PROPERTY, EXECUTION OF PLATS, TRANSFER OF PERMITS, EXECUTION 
OF CONTRACTS AND CHANGE ORDERS, PAYMENT OF REQUISITIONS, 
AND OTHER ACTIONS AS DESCRIBED HEREIN; APPROVING THE SCOPE 
AND TERMS OF SUCH AUTHORIZATION; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Tradition Community Development District No. 5 (the “District”) is a local unit of 
special purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to construct, install, operate, 
and/or maintain systems and facilities for certain basic infrastructure, including but not limited to, 
roadways, stormwater management, utilities (water and sewer), offsite improvements, amenity, 
hardscaping/landscaping/irrigation/lighting; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has adopted or intends to adopt an “Engineer’s Report,” which sets forth 
the scope of the District’s capital improvement plan (“CIP”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with the implementation of the CIP as described in the Engineer’s 
Report, the District may, from time to time, (i) obtain, execute and/or accept permits, approvals, right-of-
way agreements and other similar documents from governmental entities for the construction and/or 
operation of CIP improvements, (ii) accept, acquire, convey, dedicate and fund certain interests in real 
and personal property (e.g., roads, utilities, stormwater improvements, and other systems), and, for those 
purposes, may execute plats, deeds, easements, bills of sale, permit transfer documents, agreements, and 
other documents necessary for the conveyance and/or operation of CIP improvements, work product and 
land; (iii) contract for, and/or accept an assignment of contracts for, and/or execute change orders in 
connection with, site work and other contracts for the construction, installation, operation, maintenance, 
repair and/or replacement of CIP improvements; (iv) pay requisitions to fund the cost associated with the 
acquisition and/or construction of CIP improvements; and (v) otherwise take actions necessary to 
implement the CIP ((i) through (v) together, “CIP Documents”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, to facilitate the efficient development of the CIP, the District desires to authorize the 
Chairperson, and other officers in the Chairperson’s absence, to approve and execute any CIP Documents, 
subject to the parameters set forth herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors finds that granting such authority is in the best interests of 

the District so that the development of the CIP may proceed expeditiously, subject to the terms and 
limitations imposed by this Resolution. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 5: 

41



 
1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.  The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this 

reference are incorporated into and form a material part of this Resolution. 
 
2. AUTHORIZATION FOR CIP DOCUMENTS.  The Chairperson of the District’s Board of 

Supervisors is hereby authorized to sign, accept and/or execute CIP Documents as defined above.  Any 
exercise of authority granted hereunder is subject to:  (i) review and approval of the District Engineer and 
District Manager, in consultation with District Counsel, (ii) confirmation from the District Engineer that 
the action is consistent with the CIP as set forth in the Engineer’s Report, and (iii) confirmation from the 
District Engineer and District Manager that such action is reasonably necessary to timely implement the 
CIP.  The District Manager shall make reasonable efforts to bring any CIP Documents back to the District’s 
Board of Supervisors for ratification at the next scheduled Board meeting, but the failure to do so shall 
not invalidate any exercise of authority granted hereunder. 
 

The Vice Chairperson or Secretary of the District’s Board of Supervisors is hereby authorized to 
sign, accept and/or execute any such CIP Documents in the Chairperson’s absence. The Vice Chairperson, 
Secretary, and Assistant Secretaries of the District’s Board of Supervisors are hereby authorized to 
counter-sign such CIP Documents.  District Staff is also authorized to take such actions as are necessary to 
effect the transactions contemplated under any executed CIP Documents.   

 
3. SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this Resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 

provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

4. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect upon its passage and shall remain in 
effect unless rescinded or repealed.  This Resolution shall also apply to ratify all prior approvals and/or 
executions of CIP Documents.    
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of June, 2025.  
 
ATTEST:       TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT NO. 5 
 
 
 
_________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson, Board of 

Supervisors 
 
 
 

42



RESOLUTION 2025-13 
 

[RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ACTIONS TO IMPLEMENT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN] 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE TRADITION 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 6 AUTHORIZING CERTAIN 
ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 
DISTRICT’S CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN, INCLUDING THE 
CONVEYANCE AND/OR ACQUISITION OF REAL AND PERSONAL 
PROPERTY, EXECUTION OF PLATS, TRANSFER OF PERMITS, EXECUTION 
OF CONTRACTS AND CHANGE ORDERS, PAYMENT OF REQUISITIONS, 
AND OTHER ACTIONS AS DESCRIBED HEREIN; APPROVING THE SCOPE 
AND TERMS OF SUCH AUTHORIZATION; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Tradition Community Development District No. 6 (the “District”) is a local unit of 
special purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to construct, install, operate, 
and/or maintain systems and facilities for certain basic infrastructure, including but not limited to, 
roadways, stormwater management, utilities (water and sewer), offsite improvements, amenity, 
hardscaping/landscaping/irrigation/lighting; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has adopted or intends to adopt an “Engineer’s Report,” which sets forth 
the scope of the District’s capital improvement plan (“CIP”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with the implementation of the CIP as described in the Engineer’s 
Report, the District may, from time to time, (i) obtain, execute and/or accept permits, approvals, right-of-
way agreements and other similar documents from governmental entities for the construction and/or 
operation of CIP improvements, (ii) accept, acquire, convey, dedicate and fund certain interests in real 
and personal property (e.g., roads, utilities, stormwater improvements, and other systems), and, for those 
purposes, may execute plats, deeds, easements, bills of sale, permit transfer documents, agreements, and 
other documents necessary for the conveyance and/or operation of CIP improvements, work product and 
land; (iii) contract for, and/or accept an assignment of contracts for, and/or execute change orders in 
connection with, site work and other contracts for the construction, installation, operation, maintenance, 
repair and/or replacement of CIP improvements; (iv) pay requisitions to fund the cost associated with the 
acquisition and/or construction of CIP improvements; and (v) otherwise take actions necessary to 
implement the CIP ((i) through (v) together, “CIP Documents”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, to facilitate the efficient development of the CIP, the District desires to authorize the 
Chairperson, and other officers in the Chairperson’s absence, to approve and execute any CIP Documents, 
subject to the parameters set forth herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors finds that granting such authority is in the best interests of 

the District so that the development of the CIP may proceed expeditiously, subject to the terms and 
limitations imposed by this Resolution. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 6: 

43



 
1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.  The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this 

reference are incorporated into and form a material part of this Resolution. 
 
2. AUTHORIZATION FOR CIP DOCUMENTS.  The Chairperson of the District’s Board of 

Supervisors is hereby authorized to sign, accept and/or execute CIP Documents as defined above.  Any 
exercise of authority granted hereunder is subject to:  (i) review and approval of the District Engineer and 
District Manager, in consultation with District Counsel, (ii) confirmation from the District Engineer that 
the action is consistent with the CIP as set forth in the Engineer’s Report, and (iii) confirmation from the 
District Engineer and District Manager that such action is reasonably necessary to timely implement the 
CIP.  The District Manager shall make reasonable efforts to bring any CIP Documents back to the District’s 
Board of Supervisors for ratification at the next scheduled Board meeting, but the failure to do so shall 
not invalidate any exercise of authority granted hereunder. 
 

The Vice Chairperson or Secretary of the District’s Board of Supervisors is hereby authorized to 
sign, accept and/or execute any such CIP Documents in the Chairperson’s absence. The Vice Chairperson, 
Secretary, and Assistant Secretaries of the District’s Board of Supervisors are hereby authorized to 
counter-sign such CIP Documents.  District Staff is also authorized to take such actions as are necessary to 
effect the transactions contemplated under any executed CIP Documents.   

 
3. SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this Resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 

provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

4. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect upon its passage and shall remain in 
effect unless rescinded or repealed.  This Resolution shall also apply to ratify all prior approvals and/or 
executions of CIP Documents.    
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of June, 2025. 
 
ATTEST:       TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT NO. 6 
 
 
 
_________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson, Board of 

Supervisors 
 
 
 

44



RESOLUTION 2025-13 
 

[RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ACTIONS TO IMPLEMENT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN] 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE TRADITION 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 7 AUTHORIZING CERTAIN 
ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 
DISTRICT’S CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN, INCLUDING THE 
CONVEYANCE AND/OR ACQUISITION OF REAL AND PERSONAL 
PROPERTY, EXECUTION OF PLATS, TRANSFER OF PERMITS, EXECUTION 
OF CONTRACTS AND CHANGE ORDERS, PAYMENT OF REQUISITIONS, 
AND OTHER ACTIONS AS DESCRIBED HEREIN; APPROVING THE SCOPE 
AND TERMS OF SUCH AUTHORIZATION; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Tradition Community Development District No. 7 (the “District”) is a local unit of 
special purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to construct, install, operate, 
and/or maintain systems and facilities for certain basic infrastructure, including but not limited to, 
roadways, stormwater management, utilities (water and sewer), offsite improvements, amenity, 
hardscaping/landscaping/irrigation/lighting; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has adopted or intends to adopt an “Engineer’s Report,” which sets forth 
the scope of the District’s capital improvement plan (“CIP”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with the implementation of the CIP as described in the Engineer’s 
Report, the District may, from time to time, (i) obtain, execute and/or accept permits, approvals, right-of-
way agreements and other similar documents from governmental entities for the construction and/or 
operation of CIP improvements, (ii) accept, acquire, convey, dedicate and fund certain interests in real 
and personal property (e.g., roads, utilities, stormwater improvements, and other systems), and, for those 
purposes, may execute plats, deeds, easements, bills of sale, permit transfer documents, agreements, and 
other documents necessary for the conveyance and/or operation of CIP improvements, work product and 
land; (iii) contract for, and/or accept an assignment of contracts for, and/or execute change orders in 
connection with, site work and other contracts for the construction, installation, operation, maintenance, 
repair and/or replacement of CIP improvements; (iv) pay requisitions to fund the cost associated with the 
acquisition and/or construction of CIP improvements; and (v) otherwise take actions necessary to 
implement the CIP ((i) through (v) together, “CIP Documents”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, to facilitate the efficient development of the CIP, the District desires to authorize the 
Chairperson, and other officers in the Chairperson’s absence, to approve and execute any CIP Documents, 
subject to the parameters set forth herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors finds that granting such authority is in the best interests of 

the District so that the development of the CIP may proceed expeditiously, subject to the terms and 
limitations imposed by this Resolution. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 7: 

45



 
1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.  The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this 

reference are incorporated into and form a material part of this Resolution. 
 
2. AUTHORIZATION FOR CIP DOCUMENTS.  The Chairperson of the District’s Board of 

Supervisors is hereby authorized to sign, accept and/or execute CIP Documents as defined above.  Any 
exercise of authority granted hereunder is subject to:  (i) review and approval of the District Engineer and 
District Manager, in consultation with District Counsel, (ii) confirmation from the District Engineer that 
the action is consistent with the CIP as set forth in the Engineer’s Report, and (iii) confirmation from the 
District Engineer and District Manager that such action is reasonably necessary to timely implement the 
CIP.  The District Manager shall make reasonable efforts to bring any CIP Documents back to the District’s 
Board of Supervisors for ratification at the next scheduled Board meeting, but the failure to do so shall 
not invalidate any exercise of authority granted hereunder. 
 

The Vice Chairperson or Secretary of the District’s Board of Supervisors is hereby authorized to 
sign, accept and/or execute any such CIP Documents in the Chairperson’s absence. The Vice Chairperson, 
Secretary, and Assistant Secretaries of the District’s Board of Supervisors are hereby authorized to 
counter-sign such CIP Documents.  District Staff is also authorized to take such actions as are necessary to 
effect the transactions contemplated under any executed CIP Documents.   

 
3. SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this Resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 

provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

4. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect upon its passage and shall remain in 
effect unless rescinded or repealed.  This Resolution shall also apply to ratify all prior approvals and/or 
executions of CIP Documents.    
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of June, 2025.  
 
ATTEST:       TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT NO. 7 
 
 
 
_________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson, Board of 

Supervisors 
 
 
 

46



RESOLUTION 2025-13 
 

[RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ACTIONS TO IMPLEMENT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN] 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE TRADITION 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 8 AUTHORIZING CERTAIN 
ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 
DISTRICT’S CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN, INCLUDING THE 
CONVEYANCE AND/OR ACQUISITION OF REAL AND PERSONAL 
PROPERTY, EXECUTION OF PLATS, TRANSFER OF PERMITS, EXECUTION 
OF CONTRACTS AND CHANGE ORDERS, PAYMENT OF REQUISITIONS, 
AND OTHER ACTIONS AS DESCRIBED HEREIN; APPROVING THE SCOPE 
AND TERMS OF SUCH AUTHORIZATION; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Tradition Community Development District No. 8 (the “District”) is a local unit of 
special purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to construct, install, operate, 
and/or maintain systems and facilities for certain basic infrastructure, including but not limited to, 
roadways, stormwater management, utilities (water and sewer), offsite improvements, amenity, 
hardscaping/landscaping/irrigation/lighting; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has adopted or intends to adopt an “Engineer’s Report,” which sets forth 
the scope of the District’s capital improvement plan (“CIP”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with the implementation of the CIP as described in the Engineer’s 
Report, the District may, from time to time, (i) obtain, execute and/or accept permits, approvals, right-of-
way agreements and other similar documents from governmental entities for the construction and/or 
operation of CIP improvements, (ii) accept, acquire, convey, dedicate and fund certain interests in real 
and personal property (e.g., roads, utilities, stormwater improvements, and other systems), and, for those 
purposes, may execute plats, deeds, easements, bills of sale, permit transfer documents, agreements, and 
other documents necessary for the conveyance and/or operation of CIP improvements, work product and 
land; (iii) contract for, and/or accept an assignment of contracts for, and/or execute change orders in 
connection with, site work and other contracts for the construction, installation, operation, maintenance, 
repair and/or replacement of CIP improvements; (iv) pay requisitions to fund the cost associated with the 
acquisition and/or construction of CIP improvements; and (v) otherwise take actions necessary to 
implement the CIP ((i) through (v) together, “CIP Documents”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, to facilitate the efficient development of the CIP, the District desires to authorize the 
Chairperson, and other officers in the Chairperson’s absence, to approve and execute any CIP Documents, 
subject to the parameters set forth herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors finds that granting such authority is in the best interests of 

the District so that the development of the CIP may proceed expeditiously, subject to the terms and 
limitations imposed by this Resolution. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 8: 

47



 
1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.  The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this 

reference are incorporated into and form a material part of this Resolution. 
 
2. AUTHORIZATION FOR CIP DOCUMENTS.  The Chairperson of the District’s Board of 

Supervisors is hereby authorized to sign, accept and/or execute CIP Documents as defined above.  Any 
exercise of authority granted hereunder is subject to:  (i) review and approval of the District Engineer and 
District Manager, in consultation with District Counsel, (ii) confirmation from the District Engineer that 
the action is consistent with the CIP as set forth in the Engineer’s Report, and (iii) confirmation from the 
District Engineer and District Manager that such action is reasonably necessary to timely implement the 
CIP.  The District Manager shall make reasonable efforts to bring any CIP Documents back to the District’s 
Board of Supervisors for ratification at the next scheduled Board meeting, but the failure to do so shall 
not invalidate any exercise of authority granted hereunder. 
 

The Vice Chairperson or Secretary of the District’s Board of Supervisors is hereby authorized to 
sign, accept and/or execute any such CIP Documents in the Chairperson’s absence. The Vice Chairperson, 
Secretary, and Assistant Secretaries of the District’s Board of Supervisors are hereby authorized to 
counter-sign such CIP Documents.  District Staff is also authorized to take such actions as are necessary to 
effect the transactions contemplated under any executed CIP Documents.   

 
3. SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this Resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 

provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

4. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect upon its passage and shall remain in 
effect unless rescinded or repealed.  This Resolution shall also apply to ratify all prior approvals and/or 
executions of CIP Documents.    
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of June, 2025.  
 
ATTEST:       TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT NO. 8 
 
 
 
_________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson, Board of 

Supervisors 
 
 
 

48



RESOLUTION 2025-13 
 

[RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ACTIONS TO IMPLEMENT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN] 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE TRADITION 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 9 AUTHORIZING CERTAIN 
ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 
DISTRICT’S CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN, INCLUDING THE 
CONVEYANCE AND/OR ACQUISITION OF REAL AND PERSONAL 
PROPERTY, EXECUTION OF PLATS, TRANSFER OF PERMITS, EXECUTION 
OF CONTRACTS AND CHANGE ORDERS, PAYMENT OF REQUISITIONS, 
AND OTHER ACTIONS AS DESCRIBED HEREIN; APPROVING THE SCOPE 
AND TERMS OF SUCH AUTHORIZATION; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Tradition Community Development District No. 9 (the “District”) is a local unit of 
special purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to construct, install, operate, 
and/or maintain systems and facilities for certain basic infrastructure, including but not limited to, 
roadways, stormwater management, utilities (water and sewer), offsite improvements, amenity, 
hardscaping/landscaping/irrigation/lighting; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has adopted or intends to adopt an “Engineer’s Report,” which sets forth 
the scope of the District’s capital improvement plan (“CIP”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with the implementation of the CIP as described in the Engineer’s 
Report, the District may, from time to time, (i) obtain, execute and/or accept permits, approvals, right-of-
way agreements and other similar documents from governmental entities for the construction and/or 
operation of CIP improvements, (ii) accept, acquire, convey, dedicate and fund certain interests in real 
and personal property (e.g., roads, utilities, stormwater improvements, and other systems), and, for those 
purposes, may execute plats, deeds, easements, bills of sale, permit transfer documents, agreements, and 
other documents necessary for the conveyance and/or operation of CIP improvements, work product and 
land; (iii) contract for, and/or accept an assignment of contracts for, and/or execute change orders in 
connection with, site work and other contracts for the construction, installation, operation, maintenance, 
repair and/or replacement of CIP improvements; (iv) pay requisitions to fund the cost associated with the 
acquisition and/or construction of CIP improvements; and (v) otherwise take actions necessary to 
implement the CIP ((i) through (v) together, “CIP Documents”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, to facilitate the efficient development of the CIP, the District desires to authorize the 
Chairperson, and other officers in the Chairperson’s absence, to approve and execute any CIP Documents, 
subject to the parameters set forth herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors finds that granting such authority is in the best interests of 

the District so that the development of the CIP may proceed expeditiously, subject to the terms and 
limitations imposed by this Resolution. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 9: 

49



 
1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.  The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this 

reference are incorporated into and form a material part of this Resolution. 
 
2. AUTHORIZATION FOR CIP DOCUMENTS.  The Chairperson of the District’s Board of 

Supervisors is hereby authorized to sign, accept and/or execute CIP Documents as defined above.  Any 
exercise of authority granted hereunder is subject to:  (i) review and approval of the District Engineer and 
District Manager, in consultation with District Counsel, (ii) confirmation from the District Engineer that 
the action is consistent with the CIP as set forth in the Engineer’s Report, and (iii) confirmation from the 
District Engineer and District Manager that such action is reasonably necessary to timely implement the 
CIP.  The District Manager shall make reasonable efforts to bring any CIP Documents back to the District’s 
Board of Supervisors for ratification at the next scheduled Board meeting, but the failure to do so shall 
not invalidate any exercise of authority granted hereunder. 
 

The Vice Chairperson or Secretary of the District’s Board of Supervisors is hereby authorized to 
sign, accept and/or execute any such CIP Documents in the Chairperson’s absence. The Vice Chairperson, 
Secretary, and Assistant Secretaries of the District’s Board of Supervisors are hereby authorized to 
counter-sign such CIP Documents.  District Staff is also authorized to take such actions as are necessary to 
effect the transactions contemplated under any executed CIP Documents.   

 
3. SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this Resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 

provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

4. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect upon its passage and shall remain in 
effect unless rescinded or repealed.  This Resolution shall also apply to ratify all prior approvals and/or 
executions of CIP Documents.    
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of June, 2025. 
ATTEST:       TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT NO. 9 
 
 
 
_________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson, Board of 

Supervisors 
 
 
 

50



RESOLUTION 2025-13 
 

[RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ACTIONS TO IMPLEMENT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN] 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE TRADITION 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 10 AUTHORIZING CERTAIN 
ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 
DISTRICT’S CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN, INCLUDING THE 
CONVEYANCE AND/OR ACQUISITION OF REAL AND PERSONAL 
PROPERTY, EXECUTION OF PLATS, TRANSFER OF PERMITS, EXECUTION 
OF CONTRACTS AND CHANGE ORDERS, PAYMENT OF REQUISITIONS, 
AND OTHER ACTIONS AS DESCRIBED HEREIN; APPROVING THE SCOPE 
AND TERMS OF SUCH AUTHORIZATION; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Tradition Community Development District No. 10 (the “District”) is a local unit of 
special purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to construct, install, operate, 
and/or maintain systems and facilities for certain basic infrastructure, including but not limited to, 
roadways, stormwater management, utilities (water and sewer), offsite improvements, amenity, 
hardscaping/landscaping/irrigation/lighting; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has adopted or intends to adopt an “Engineer’s Report,” which sets forth 
the scope of the District’s capital improvement plan (“CIP”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with the implementation of the CIP as described in the Engineer’s 
Report, the District may, from time to time, (i) obtain, execute and/or accept permits, approvals, right-of-
way agreements and other similar documents from governmental entities for the construction and/or 
operation of CIP improvements, (ii) accept, acquire, convey, dedicate and fund certain interests in real 
and personal property (e.g., roads, utilities, stormwater improvements, and other systems), and, for those 
purposes, may execute plats, deeds, easements, bills of sale, permit transfer documents, agreements, and 
other documents necessary for the conveyance and/or operation of CIP improvements, work product and 
land; (iii) contract for, and/or accept an assignment of contracts for, and/or execute change orders in 
connection with, site work and other contracts for the construction, installation, operation, maintenance, 
repair and/or replacement of CIP improvements; (iv) pay requisitions to fund the cost associated with the 
acquisition and/or construction of CIP improvements; and (v) otherwise take actions necessary to 
implement the CIP ((i) through (v) together, “CIP Documents”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, to facilitate the efficient development of the CIP, the District desires to authorize the 
Chairperson, and other officers in the Chairperson’s absence, to approve and execute any CIP Documents, 
subject to the parameters set forth herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors finds that granting such authority is in the best interests of 

the District so that the development of the CIP may proceed expeditiously, subject to the terms and 
limitations imposed by this Resolution. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 10: 

51



 
1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.  The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this 

reference are incorporated into and form a material part of this Resolution. 
 
2. AUTHORIZATION FOR CIP DOCUMENTS.  The Chairperson of the District’s Board of 

Supervisors is hereby authorized to sign, accept and/or execute CIP Documents as defined above.  Any 
exercise of authority granted hereunder is subject to:  (i) review and approval of the District Engineer and 
District Manager, in consultation with District Counsel, (ii) confirmation from the District Engineer that 
the action is consistent with the CIP as set forth in the Engineer’s Report, and (iii) confirmation from the 
District Engineer and District Manager that such action is reasonably necessary to timely implement the 
CIP.  The District Manager shall make reasonable efforts to bring any CIP Documents back to the District’s 
Board of Supervisors for ratification at the next scheduled Board meeting, but the failure to do so shall 
not invalidate any exercise of authority granted hereunder. 
 

The Vice Chairperson or Secretary of the District’s Board of Supervisors is hereby authorized to 
sign, accept and/or execute any such CIP Documents in the Chairperson’s absence. The Vice Chairperson, 
Secretary, and Assistant Secretaries of the District’s Board of Supervisors are hereby authorized to 
counter-sign such CIP Documents.  District Staff is also authorized to take such actions as are necessary to 
effect the transactions contemplated under any executed CIP Documents.   

 
3. SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this Resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 

provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

4. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect upon its passage and shall remain in 
effect unless rescinded or repealed.  This Resolution shall also apply to ratify all prior approvals and/or 
executions of CIP Documents.    
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of June, 2025.  
 
ATTEST:       TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT NO. 10 
 
 
 
_________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson, Board of 

Supervisors 
 
 
 

52



RESOLUTION 2025-13 
 

[RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ACTIONS TO IMPLEMENT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN] 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE TRADITION 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 11 AUTHORIZING CERTAIN 
ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 
DISTRICT’S CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN, INCLUDING THE 
CONVEYANCE AND/OR ACQUISITION OF REAL AND PERSONAL 
PROPERTY, EXECUTION OF PLATS, TRANSFER OF PERMITS, EXECUTION 
OF CONTRACTS AND CHANGE ORDERS, PAYMENT OF REQUISITIONS, 
AND OTHER ACTIONS AS DESCRIBED HEREIN; APPROVING THE SCOPE 
AND TERMS OF SUCH AUTHORIZATION; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Tradition Community Development District No. 11 (the “District”) is a local unit of 
special purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to construct, install, operate, 
and/or maintain systems and facilities for certain basic infrastructure, including but not limited to, 
roadways, stormwater management, utilities (water and sewer), offsite improvements, amenity, 
hardscaping/landscaping/irrigation/lighting; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has adopted or intends to adopt an “Engineer’s Report,” which sets forth 
the scope of the District’s capital improvement plan (“CIP”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with the implementation of the CIP as described in the Engineer’s 
Report, the District may, from time to time, (i) obtain, execute and/or accept permits, approvals, right-of-
way agreements and other similar documents from governmental entities for the construction and/or 
operation of CIP improvements, (ii) accept, acquire, convey, dedicate and fund certain interests in real 
and personal property (e.g., roads, utilities, stormwater improvements, and other systems), and, for those 
purposes, may execute plats, deeds, easements, bills of sale, permit transfer documents, agreements, and 
other documents necessary for the conveyance and/or operation of CIP improvements, work product and 
land; (iii) contract for, and/or accept an assignment of contracts for, and/or execute change orders in 
connection with, site work and other contracts for the construction, installation, operation, maintenance, 
repair and/or replacement of CIP improvements; (iv) pay requisitions to fund the cost associated with the 
acquisition and/or construction of CIP improvements; and (v) otherwise take actions necessary to 
implement the CIP ((i) through (v) together, “CIP Documents”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, to facilitate the efficient development of the CIP, the District desires to authorize the 
Chairperson, and other officers in the Chairperson’s absence, to approve and execute any CIP Documents, 
subject to the parameters set forth herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors finds that granting such authority is in the best interests of 

the District so that the development of the CIP may proceed expeditiously, subject to the terms and 
limitations imposed by this Resolution. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 11: 

53



 
1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.  The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this 

reference are incorporated into and form a material part of this Resolution. 
 
2. AUTHORIZATION FOR CIP DOCUMENTS.  The Chairperson of the District’s Board of 

Supervisors is hereby authorized to sign, accept and/or execute CIP Documents as defined above.  Any 
exercise of authority granted hereunder is subject to:  (i) review and approval of the District Engineer and 
District Manager, in consultation with District Counsel, (ii) confirmation from the District Engineer that 
the action is consistent with the CIP as set forth in the Engineer’s Report, and (iii) confirmation from the 
District Engineer and District Manager that such action is reasonably necessary to timely implement the 
CIP.  The District Manager shall make reasonable efforts to bring any CIP Documents back to the District’s 
Board of Supervisors for ratification at the next scheduled Board meeting, but the failure to do so shall 
not invalidate any exercise of authority granted hereunder. 
 

The Vice Chairperson or Secretary of the District’s Board of Supervisors is hereby authorized to 
sign, accept and/or execute any such CIP Documents in the Chairperson’s absence. The Vice Chairperson, 
Secretary, and Assistant Secretaries of the District’s Board of Supervisors are hereby authorized to 
counter-sign such CIP Documents.  District Staff is also authorized to take such actions as are necessary to 
effect the transactions contemplated under any executed CIP Documents.   

 
3. SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this Resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 

provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

4. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect upon its passage and shall remain in 
effect unless rescinded or repealed.  This Resolution shall also apply to ratify all prior approvals and/or 
executions of CIP Documents.    
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of June, 2025.  
 
ATTEST:       TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT NO. 11 
 
 
 
_________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson, Board of 

Supervisors 
 
 
 

54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



Financial Report:
Under Separate Cover 

75


	Cover Page 
	Agenda
	Proof of Publicaton 
	Minutes 4.2.25
	Statement of Work #TR20241031
	Services Contract - Premier Site Work 
	WA #19-143-190 - Lotis at Tradition - SWM
	WA#19-143-191 - Westcliffe Ln Ext - SWM
	WA #19-143-192 - Sundance Vista Parkway Phase 1 -SWM
	Resolution #2025-11; Adopting Proposed Budget FY: 25/26 and Setting a Public Hearing (Under Separate Cover)
	Reolution #2025-13; Auth Certain Actions in Connection of the CIP CDD Nos. 1-11
	TRA Trail Easement & Berm Agreement with The Lakes HOA
	Financial Report: Under Separate Cover



